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Bilad Capital

We at Al-Bilad Securities & Investment Company place
high importance on realizing our vision and mission,
based on clear core values, with the intention of providing
a better service for our clients, which we consider as our

partners.

Hence, we are committed to provide the most modern
technologies in investment services and financial tools in
response to our clients and shareholders requirements, for
the purpose of achieving their investment goals
efficiently, and through a well-trained and integrated

team.

We also strive to provide all services in accordance with a
modern vision, and provide investors with an advanced
and comfortable work environment to help them make
their decisions transparently and in an outstanding
manner, using the most advanced methods in information

technology based on extensive studies and research.

We at Bilad capital, acquire inspiration, strong will and a
continued desire to work diligently to develop our
services, which are inspired by our wise leadership of His
Majesty King Abdullah Il, may the Lord protect Him for

our beloved nation.
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Core value:

Our core values are
principles that guide us
daily in helping our
customers achieve
financial prosperity. at
all times strive to place
the trust of our clients
among the top priorities
of our Company,
through providing the
best services and
investment tools
available, and
contributing to achieve
the customers'

investmentambitions.

Trustworthy: the most
important values that
we keep the promises
made and a
commitmentto

providing a business the

Our Vision:

To maintain a steady
and continued growth
as we diversify our
products portfolio,
strengthen our position
in the sector thatwe
serve, consolidate our
position as the leading
financial services
provider in the kingdom

of Jordan.

We strive to provides
excellence in customer’s
service and compliance
through the steady
commitment to our
clients, and meet their
needs regardless of their
investment objectives,
this would qualify us to
be in the forefront of

financial brokerage

Our Mission :

To be a leading
investment company and
provide a full range of
high-quality investment
products and services to
our clients, as well as
help our customers to
achieve financial
prosperity and peace of
mind by earning people's
trust in the friendliest
ways, while adhering to a
strong set of corporate

principles and a

right way. firms and investment
services companies in continued focus on
Jordan.
.process improvement.
| A N v




Board of

Directors

Chairman Of The Board

Eng. Ismail Issa Ismail

Dkeidek

Vice Chairman Of The Board
Member of the Board

Mr.Samer Yousef Kayed Hammad.
Mr. Sherif Tawfiq Hamad Al- .
Representative of Sadaf Al-Bahar
Rawashdeh, Representative of
Real Estate Development Co.
the Green Oasis Housing co

Auditors
General
\ET ET-LT4 Messrs. KPMG
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Mr. Ahmed Mohamed Legal Advisor
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Al Bilad Securities and Investment Co.

Annual report of the board of directors on the company'’s business for the year 2020
And the future plan for 2021

Auditors’ report
For the period ending 12-31-2020
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Chairman's Latter

Respected Shareholder

On behalf of myself and the members of the Board of Directors to welcome you and thank you for answering your
invitation to attend the company's regular general meeting and we are pleased to present to you the fifteenth annual
report thatincludes the company's business and its financial statements for the year 2020, according to the provisions of

Articles 169 and 171 of the Companies Law No. 22 of 1997 and its amendments.

Our Respected Shareholder

The year 2020 witnessed important developments as a result of the exceptional repercussions resulting from the Covid-
19 pandemic, which had negative effects on various countries of the world, which had an impact on most economic
sectors in the Kingdom, including the main activity of the company, which depends on financial investments, which had
the greatestimpact. On the results of the company's business, and despite the continued performance of the financial
market at an unsatisfactory pace and its suffering from the lack of liquidity necessary to move it, the company continued
to work to take sufficient measures to maintain continuity and find integrated solutions to face the repercussions of the
Covid-19 pandemic, as we faced these challenges to preserve On our long-standing commitment to our shareholders,

customers and communities to return to the path of recovery.

As the volume of trading in the Amman Stock Exchange decreased in 2020 to (1.004) billion dinars compared with
(1.153) billion dinars for the year 2019, a decrease of 12.92%, and the general index of share prices weighted by free
float shares decreased to (1657.22) points by the end of the year 2020 compared with (1815.2) (A point by the end of the
year 2019, i.e. a decrease of 8.70%, and the market value of the shares listed on the Amman Stock Exchange by the end of
the year 2020 decreased to 12.9 billion dinars, a decrease of 13.5% compared to the market value of the listed shares at

the end of last year 2019.
Allow me, at the conclusion of this meeting, to reiterate my thanks and appreciation to you for participating in this
meeting and to our esteemed clients for their trust, support and good dealings. Better and better results, you have all the

love and respect.

Chairman of Board of Directors
Ismail Issa Dkedik

Fifteenth Annual Report 2020 7



The annual report of the company’s business
for the year 2020 and the future plan for 2021
Y 2 2 2y 2 2 4

Respected Messes, Shareholders,

Greetings,

The Board of directors is pleased to welcome you to the fifteenth annual meeting of the general assembly to
present to you its annual report on the company's activities for 2020, in accordance with the provisions of article
(4) paragraph (B) of the disclosure instruction of issuing companies, accounting standards, and auditing standards
released in 2004.

First: Description of the company's main activities and geographical locations
size of capital investment and number of employees:

Main company activities:

Al-Bilad Securities and Investment Public Shareholding Company was established in March 2006 with a capital of
10 million JD, as the company seeks to reach a prominent position in the Amman Financial Market and regional
markets through its activities, and the activities of the company and the licenses granted to it are by (JSC) the
following: Financial intermediation for its account, the account of others and financing on the margin, and
recently obtained a license for a broker identified with foreign stock exchanges by the Securities Commission, as
the company seeks to expand and meet the needs of its investors in order to achieve its goals and in a manner that

does not conflict with the securities law Financial

Geographical locations of the company's offices and staff:

The company's main offices are located in Amman - Sweifieh - Paris St. The company's branch is located in Zarqa -
Al Wasat Al-Tejari - Bab Al-Wad St. It has no branches outside the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan, The number of

employees in the main branch is 10 employees and the number of employees in Zarqa branch is 2 employees.

Capital investment:

The capital investment of the company until the end of 2020 amounted to JD (4,662,767).
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Second: Description of the subsidiaries and the nature of their work and areas of

activity:

A. Subsidiary and its ownership:

Sowar Al Sharq Trading Company is a limited liability company registered under (30101) on 03/10/2012 with a
capital of 1000 JD, wholly owned by Al Bilad Securities Investment Company.

B- The company's location and number of employees:

The Company’s main position is at Al-Bilad Securities and Investment Company. There are no employees in the
company and are managed by Al-Bilad for Securities and Investment. There are no other branches of the company

inside or outside the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan.

C- Description of the activities and nature of the work and areas of the company's activity:

The company owns a plot of land (No. 676) basin No. (24) Um Tina of the land of Naour with an area of (4.690)
acres. The main activity of the company is a fruit tree farm, marketing the production and possessing the

transferred and non-transferable funds required for it. During the year 2020.

as2277 500 589986 250
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Third: Members of the Board of Directors and Executive Management:

A.  Members of the Board of Directors consist of seven members :

Eng/ Ismail Issa Ismail Dkeidek Chairman Of Board

*BorninJerusalem, 1950.

* Educational Degree:

* Bachelor’s Degree in Civil Engineering, Florida International University, Miami, United States of America, 1987.

* Practical Experience:
« Project Director, Saudi Company for Research and Development, Al-Khobar- Saudi Arabia, {1979 — 1982}.

« Technical Consultant, Mohammad Al-Bahri Establishment, Construction Company, Al-Riyadh, Saudi Arabia, {1982-
2010},

* Deputy Chairman, Al-Bilad Medical Services Co, Amman-Jordan {1997-1998}.

* Member of Engineers Association, Dubai-UAE, {1998-2014}.

« Chairman, Al-Bilad Medical Services Co, Amman-Jordan {1998-2014}.

* General Manager, Al-Bilad Medical Services Co, Amman-Jordan {2002-2014}.

« Chairman of the Board of Directors, Al-Bilad Al-Khadra’a Real Estate Investment Company, {2006-2014}.

*Member of the Board of Directors, Arabia for International Trading and Investments Company (INMA) since
04/2016 - Till Now}.

» Member of the Board of Directors, Darkom Investment Company since 2014 - Till Now}.

Mr. Samer Yousef Kayed Hammad Vice Chairman of the board ,

Representative of Sadaf Al-Bahar Real Estate Development Co

*Bornin Amman, 1968.

* Educational Degrees:
* Bachelor's Degree in Finance &Banking science, Yarmouk University, 1991.

* Master Degree in Business Accounting, New York University, New York- USA, 1995.

* Practical Experience:
* Deputy Manager &Partner, Center Press Co, Jordan, {1991- Till Now}.
» Manager and Owner, Hammad General Services, Ontario- Canada, {1999-2011}.
« President and Chief Pilot (Volunteer), Royal Jordanian Gliding, {2004 - Till Now}.
* Managerial Board Member, Jordanian Canadian Business Association, {2005- Till Now}.
* Member of the Board of Directors, Al-lnma Investment &Financing Co, {2012- Till Now }.
» CFO, Member of the Board of Directors, Canadian International School, Amman, {2014 - Till Now}.

» Member of the Board of Directors, Jordan Clearing &Transport Co, {2015 - Till Now}.

Fifteenth Annual Report 2020
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Mr. lyad Ghassoub Jamil Al-Asali Member of the Board,
Representative of Dom Al-Riyadh for Trade &Investment Co.

Bornin Jerusalem, 1966.

* Educational Degrees:
*Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration/ Economy and statistics, Jordan University, 1986.

* MBA, American University of Cairo, Egypt, 1989.

Practical Experience:

« Credit and Marketing Officer, Al-Mashreq Bank, Dubai-UAE, {1989-1992}.

« Director of the Credit Department, ABC Bank, Amman-Jordan, {1992-1999}.

« Chief of the Commercial Bank Services Group, Arab National Bank, Riyadh-Saudi Arabia, {1999-2007}.
* Deputy CEO-of the Corporate Banking Services Group, Jordan Ahli Bank, Jordan,{2007-2011}.

« General Member, International Islamic Arabic Bank, Jordan, {2011-Till Now}.

*Member of the French Chamber of Commerce and Industry in Jordan, CAFRA], {2012- Till Now}.
* Member of the Board of Trustees, INJAZ for the Volunteers work of youth, {2012-Till Now}.

* An active member of the forum Jordanian strategies, {2013- Till Now}.

» Member of the Jordanian Businessmen Association, {2015-Till Now}.

*Member of the Board of Directors, Saving Fund of the Jordan Postal, {2015-Till Now}.

*Member of the Board of Trustees of the Fund for the future of orphans, {2018 - Till Now}.

» Member of the Board of Directors of Al-Bilad Securities and Investment Company, {4/2010 - Till Now}.

Mr. Ahmed Mohammad Mahmoud Al-AhmadMember of the

Board, Representative of Al-Bilad Medical Services Co.

Bornin 1984 / Zarqa. *

* Educational Degrees:
* Bachelor of Accounting, Yarmouk University, 2006

» Member of the Institute of Internal Auditors (I1A)

* Practical experiences:

« - Internal auditor at Aqaba Special Economic Zone Authority - from 2007 to 2009.

« - Internal Auditor at Fall Arabia Holding Company Riyadh-Saudi Arabia from 2012-2015.
« - Financial Director of Ramle Medical Services Ltd. Riyadh - Saudi Arabia from 2014-2015
« - Internal auditor in Al-Bilad Medical Services Company from 8-2016 till 1-2018.

« - Acting General Manager of Al Bilad Medical Services Company from 9-2016 till 9-2018.

« - General Manager of Al-Bilad Medical Services Company from 9-2017 - Till Now}.
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Mr. Ahmad Salah Attalla Suheimat Member of the Board

Bornin Amman, 1951. ¢

* Educational Degrees:

*Bachelor's Degree in Economy, University of Houston, Texas- USA, 1978.

« Practical Experience:
* Operation Director, City bank manager, Al-Khobar—Saudi Arabia {1980- 1983}.
« Electronic Operations Director, Saudi American Bank (Citibank), Riyadh-Saudi Arabia, {1983-1985}
« Director in the bank facilities, Saudi American Bank (Citibank), Riyadh-Saudi Arabia,{1985-1991}.
« Financial Manager, Safari Company, Riyadh - Saudi Arabia,{1991-1993}
* Chairman of the Investment Group, Saudi Commercial Bank, Riyadh - Saudi Arabia,{1993-1997}
« Director of Facilities, Saudi American Bank-central region, Riyadh, Saudi Arabia {1997- 2001}.
« Director of Facilities, Saudi France Bank-Central Region, Riyadh-Saudi Arabia,{2003-2008}.
« Chairman of Board of Directors of A'awn for investment, Amman-Jordan, 2009.
« Partner and executive director of the House tables for Publication and Distribution, Riyadh-Saudi Arabia, {2008 - Till
Now}.
« Several sessions with Citibank in operations, credit, treasury and administration in Athens, London, Singapore,

Istanbul and Riyadh.

Mr. Mohamed Rashid Dhiab Hassan Member of the Board .

Bornin 1982 / Kuwait.

* Educational Degrees:

* Bachelor of Economics - Financial Management Yarmouk University in 2004

* Practical experiences:

+ Director of Accounts of the International Company for Ductile Tubes Ltd. (INDEPCO) Riyadh - Saudi Arabia from 2008 -
2012.

« Financial Director of the International Company for Ductile Enamel Ltd. (INDPCO) Riyadh-Saudi Arabia from 2012-
2014.

« Controller of the group companies Fall Arabia Holding Riyadh - Saudi Arabia from 2014-2017

« Director of Financial Management of the Group Fal Arab Holding Company Riyadh - Saudi Arabia from 2017 - Till
Now}.

*Member of the Board of Directors of Al-Bilad Medical Services Company and Chairman of the Audit Committee from
11/2017—07/2019}.
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Mr. Sharif Tawfig Hamad Al-Rawashdeh Member of the Board,
Representative of The Green Oasis Housing co..

Bornin Zarqga, 1958. «

* Educational Degree:

* Bachelor's degree in Economics, Yarmouk University, Irbid- Jordan, 1986.

« Practical Experience :
* General Manager, the Saudi Investment Bank, Riyadh-KSA {1988-2010}.

* A Former Member, The Jordanian House of Representatives, and Member of Health and Environment committee

and Member of the Energy and Mining committee {2010-2011} .
* Board of Director Member, Al-Bilad Medical Services Co, Amman-Jordan {2002-2014}.
* Vice Chairman, Arab Jordanian Insurance Group, Amman-Jordan {2012 - 2016}.
*Member of the Board of the Arab Jordanian Insurance Group, 07/2020 Till Now .
« Chairman of the Board, Arabian Development and Investment Trading Co (INMA) {2012-11/2015}.
« Chairman of the Board, Jazira Securities Brokerage, Egypt.
* Chairman of the Board, Mandala Beauty Clinic, Amman-Jordan {2014 - Till Now}.
» Member of the Board of Trustee's, Mutah University, Karak-Jordan.
* Board Member, Jordanian Canadian International School, Amman-Jordan.
* Board Member & head of audit committees, Jordan Commercial Bank, {2012 - Till Now}.

»Member of the Board of Directors, National Chlorine Industries Company, from 4/2012 until 10/2012.

* Member of the Board of Directors, Arabian Aluminum Manufacturing Company since 04/2017 - Till Now}.

B. Brief Introduction of the Executive and control Management Team :

General Manager: Mr. Sameer Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh

e Bornin1955/Amman.

* Educational Degrees: Bachelor’s

* Practical experiences :

+ -25years’ experience in banking and investments.

¢ -Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Arabian for aluminum Industries Co.

« - Chairman of the Board of Directors, Arabia for International Trading and Investments Co. (INMA)

 -Member of the Board of Directors, the Securities Deposit Center.
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Director, Brokerage Department: Mr. Tareq Mohammad Daoud
Al-Muhtasseb

*Bornin 1974/ Amman.
* Educational Degrees: Bachelor’s of Accounting - Al-Isra University.
* Practical experiences :

* Brokerage Manager in a number of financial services companies.
+ Chairman of the Board of Directors, Arabia for International Trading and Investments Co.

* Member of the Board of Directors of Al-Tajamouat Investment Co. (SPIC).

Acting Chief Financial Manager: Mr. Ahmad Abdelrahim

Mustafa Daghmash

* Bornin 1979/ Amman.
* Educational Degrees: Bachelor’s of Accounting - al zaytona University.

 Practical experiences:

* Head of an accounting department in several financial services companies.

Compliance Officer : Mohammad Issam Othman Dar
B Mahmoud

+ Bornin 1992/ Zarqa.

+ Educational Degrees: Bachelor’s of Accounting and Commercial Law - The Hashemite University.
+ Diploma of Accounting - Al-Balqa Applied University.

+ Member of the (CISI) UK Professional Certification Institute

* Practical experiences :
« Compliance Officer and Internal Auditor at the Arab Swiss Financial Investment Co.

« Internal auditor and accountant in different companies.

ik
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Fourth: Major Shareholders

- Major owners of shares whose share exceeds 5% of the capital compared to the previous year:

No of Shears No of Shears
(2019) (2020)
Sharif Tawfiqg Hamad Al-Rawashdeh 2,783,132 %27.83 2,778,532 %27.785
Al-Bilad Medical Services Co. 2,231,017 %22.31 2,231,017 %22.31
Dom Al-Riyadh for Trade &Investment Co. 1,204,338 %12.04 1,204,338 %12.04
Abdul-Aziz Bin Hamad Bin Ibrahim Meshal. 700,000 %7.00 700,000 %7.00

Fifth: the competitive position of the company within its sector, and its share
of the domestic market, as well as the share of foreign markets, if any.

There is no doubt that competition among brokerage firms is significant given that there are 56 licensed brokerage
companies operates in the Amman Stock Exchange Market. However, the company was able to achieve a good ranking

in terms of trading volume in the Amman Stock Exchange during 2020, as shown in the table below:

Traded value | Traded Value at the *ASE | Traded value (%) Rank in the *ASE
12

2016 117,506,361 4,680,768,698 %2.5
2017 92,818,609 5,907,519,572 %1.6 16

2018 035,,7359 4,699,152,689 %1.3 17

2019 56,539,489 3,262,617,067 %1.7 23
2020 34,192,079 2,179,132,036 %1.57 21

*ASE : Amman Stock Exchange Market
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Sixth: The degree of reliance on specific suppliers and / or main customers
(locally and abroad):

There is no reliance on the specified suppliers or major customers locally and abroad 10% or more of the total

purchases and revenues of the company.

(muw - ’ %Q v MY T
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Seventh: Government protection and privileges enjoyed by the company:

7

a Description of any governmental protection enjoyed by the Company or of the privileges enjoyed by the
Company or any of its products according to laws, regulations or otherwise with reference to the period to
which this applies: There is no government protection or privileges enjoyed by the Company or any of its

products under laws or regulations.

a Description of any patents or franchise rights obtained by the Company: There are no patents or franchise

rights obtained by the Company.

,;“ \ L——L

Eighth: A description of any decision by the Government, International
Organizations and a disclosure of the Company’s implementation of international

quality standards.

a Description of any decisions issued by the government, international organizations or others that have a
material effect on the company's work or products or its competitiveness: There are no decisions issued by
the government or international organizations or others that have a material impact on the company's work

or products or its competitiveness.

L Disclosure of the Company's application of international quality standards: The international quality

standards of the company are not applied.
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Ninth: The Company’s organizational structure, recruitment policy, number o
employees, and their training programs are as follows.

A. Organizational Structure:

Chairman of Board of
Directors —» External Auditor
Secretary  +—— l —+  Legal Advisor
— General Manager —
IT Manager . L+  Compliance
Officer
Rark (¥ffirs Administrative Financial branch Brokerage Assets Department
Department Manager Mazager Department manager Department Manager
Customer
-] HE Officer - Chief - Broker Broker a{ | Assety -
Custamsr ] O¥ffirs T ] | Cuutnmsr .
Cuctnmer - Tiriver 7 - FraavFar 4
Service Officer Broker  +| | FimamcmgOfficer o
Secratary - Sacratary -

B. Companyemployees and Qualification:
The number of employees of the company from various disciplines until 31/12/2020 a total of (12) The following

is a statement of their scientific qualifications:

Qualification The main center Zarqa Branch total
Bachelor’s Degree Holders 6 1 7
Community College Holders 2 0 2
Below High School(Tawjihi) Holders 2 1 3
Total 10 2 12

C. Training and Qualification:

L] The Company trains its employees in all departments to provide them with comprehensive knowledge of

the Company’s activities.
The Company sends those employees whose work requires renewal and development to training courses
during the year. This depends on the extent to which the Company benefits from such courses and their

relevance to the employee’s work.
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Tenth: Risks Facing the Company

Like other financial brokerage companies, Bilad Capital is exposed to what is termed ‘regular risks’, resulting from
economic, political and social conditions affecting capital markets, and henceforth financial securities prices,
especially the customer category that deals with the company in the field of finance at the margin, which constitute
the main securities guarantees them especially those customers who finance their activities through margin
accounts and here is lays the risk, which is mostly due to the lack of collateral, putting all the pressure in the

securities that possessed in margin account to be the only guarantees.

> 28 = cr <00

Eleventh: Achievements achieved by the company in 2019 and important events

during the fiscal year:

A - The achievements of the company supported figures: The volume of trading company, 34,192,079 D

during the year 2020 ranked No. 21 on the brokerage firms competing with a share of %1.57 of the size of the

market.

B - Significant events during the fiscal year: As an extension of the company's vision in the relentless pursuit of

expansion, more customers were attracted during 2020

JECI AN
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Thirteenth: Profits and Losses

Description 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Profits (Losses) in JD 101,100 (620,945) (81,808) 12,094 (500,481)
Net Shareholders’ Equity 9,822,930 8,644,327 8,669,292 8,354,610 7,622,378
Distributed Profits None None None None None
Company Share Book Value 0.982 0.864 0.867 0.835 0.762
Closing Price of Company Share 0.67 1.05 1.050 0.79 0.56

/M“v

Fourteenth: Analysis of the Financial Position and the Results of Operations in
2020, Compared with 2019:

2019 2020
Trading Percentage (Times) 2.591 2.052
Quick Liquidity Ratio (Times) 2.311 1.835
Operating Capital (JD) 2,274,631 1,712,371
Cash Ratio 0.125 0.172
Debt Ratio %15.33 %18.45
Debt/Equity Ratio %18.11 %22.63
Return on Investment (ROI) %0.122 %(5.354)
Return on equity (ROE) %0.145 %(6.566)
Earnings Per Share 0.001 (0.053)

3

B Liquidity Ratio

2.5

5 B Quick Ratio
1.5 B Cash Ratio

1 Debt Ratio
0.5 HROI

0 = ROE

e 2019
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Fifteenth: Developments and Company future Year Plan

A - Expansion and new projects: Continue to seek to attract more customers in all areas of financial services have

been obtained licenses: - Financial brokerage, investment management, margin financing, in addition to the
expansion of the service of financial intermediation to include the opening of new branches and the launch of
markets Regional commissions.

B - The future plan of the company: We will seek to complete access to the rest of the licenses of financial services

in the light of developments and needs for the next phase so that the company becomes a competition for all
financial services companies.

C) Board of Directors' expectations for the results of the company's business: The search for investment

opportunities that achieve an excellent return for the company through entering into strategic contributions or

establishing subsidiaries, which in turn will contribute to increase the revenues of the company.

S >
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Sixteenth: Auditor Fees.

Auditor fees for the year 2020 amounted to (13,920 ) D for Al-Bilad Securities and Investment Co. (Parent

Company), and amounted to (500) JD for Sawar Al-Sharq Trading Co (subsidiary Company). There are no fees paid

or due to auditors for services other.

=Rk = BT |

Seventeenth: A statement of the number of securities issued by the company and owned by the

members of the Board of Directors and Management executive and their relatives, and the
companies controlled by any of them compared to the previous year:

A.  Securities issued by the Company and owned by the members of the Board of Directors:

Name Nationality Adjective Number of Shares
2019 2020
The Green Oasis Housing co. Jordanian Legal None 5000
Mr. Sharif Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh Jordanian Natural 2,783,132 2,778,532
Eng. Ismail Issa Ismail Dkeidek Jordanian Natural 103,804 103,804
Dom Al-Riyad for Trade &Investment. Jordanian Legal 1,204,338 1,204,338
Mr.lyad Ghasoub Jamil Asali. Jordanian Natural None NETYR
Sadaf Al-Bahar Real Estate Development Jordanian Legal 79,594 79,594
Mr.Samer Yousef Kayed Hammad Jordanian Natural None NETR |
Al-Bilad Medical Services Co. Jordanian Legal 2,231,017 2,231,017
Mr. Ahmed Mohammad Al-Ahmad Jordanian Natural None NETR |
Mr. ahmad Salah Atallah Suheimat. Jordanian Natural 50,000 50,000
Mr. Mohamed Rashid Dhiab Hassan. Jordanian Natural 25,000 25,000

Fifteenth Annual Report 2020 20



** Securities issued by the company and ownership by relatives of the members of the

board of directors:

Members of the Board of Directors and their

Relatives

Mr. Sharif Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh

Relationship

Nationality

No. of Shares

Suhad Abdulaziz Khalaf Al-Rawashdeh Wife Jordanian None None
Rayan Sharif Tawfiq Al-Rawashdeh Son Jordanian None None
Mr. Ismail Issa Ismail Dkeidek

Melissa Suzanne Eben Berry Dkeidek Wife American 2,202 2,202
Mr.lyad Ghasoub Jamil Asali.

Salam Mohammed Abed AlHadi Najdawi wife Jordanian None None
Farah lyad Ghassoub Asali Daughter Jordanian None None
Noor lyad Ghassoub Asali Daughter Jordanian None None
Hana lyad Ghassoub Asali Daughter Jordanian None None
Mr.Samer Yousef Kayed Hammad.

Nada Khalil Elias Karam Wife Jordanian None None
Faisal Yousef Samer Hammad Son Jordanian None None
Ghada Samer Yousef Hammad Daughter Jordanian None None
Mesk Samer Yousef Hammad Daughter Jordanian None None
Mr. Ahmed Salah Atallah Al Suheimat

Hanna Mohammed Al Suheimat Wife Jordanian None None
Mr. Mohamed Rashid Dhiab Hassan.

Mai Wafik fared annsour Wife Jordanian None None
Rashid Mohamed Rashid Hassan. Son Jordanian None None
Abdurrahman Mohamed Rashid Hassan. Son Jordanian None None
Mr. Ahmed Mohammad Al-Ahmad

Sandy Saleh Mahmoud Abed Wife Jordanian None None
Zanah Ahmed Mohammad Al Ahmad Daughter Jordanian None None
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Nationality Position No. of Shares No. of Shares

2019 2020
Mr. Sameer Tawfiq Hamad Al- Jordanian General Manager

None None
Rawashdeh
Mr. Tareq Mohammad Daoud Jordanian Director, Brokerage

None None
Al Muhtaseb Department
Mr. Ahmad Abdel Rahim Jordanian Acting chief

None None
Mustafa Daghmash Financial Manager

/ RS . . .
** Securities issued by the Company and owned by the relatives of management executive:

Management executive and their Relatives Relationship Nationality No. of Shares

2019 2020

Mr. Sameer Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh

None

Mr. Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al-Hajj Omar Al-Muhtasseb

Sara Marwan Noor Al Din Shahdeh Wife Jordanian None None
Tala Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al-Muhtasseb Daughter Jordanian None None
Daoud Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al-Muhtasseb Son Jordanian None None
Farah Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al-Muhtasseb Daughter Jordanian None None
Muhammad Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al- Son Jordanian None None
Muhtasseb

Mr. Ahmad Abdelrahim Mustafa Daghmash

Sana’a Hussein Mohammad Zeidan Wife Jordanian None None
Amr Ahmad Abdelrahim Daghmash Son Jordanian None None
Munther Ahmad Abdelrahim Daghmash Son Jordanian None None
Abdelrahim Ahmad Abdelrahim Daghmash Son Jordanian None None
Mohammad Ahmad Abdelrahim Daghmash Son Jordanian None None
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E. Companies controlled by members of the Board of Directors and their relatives:

Members of the Board of Directors and their

Relationship

Companies No. of shares owned by the

Relatives Controlled controlling company

2019

2020

The Green Oasis Housing co. Member None None None
D0n1ALRWad 1,204,338 1,204,338
Mr. Sharif Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh Representative
Sadaf Al-Bahar 79,594 79,594
Suhad Abdulaziz Khalaf Al-Rawashdeh Wife None None None
Rayan Sharif Tawfiq Al-Rawashdeh Son None None None

Mr. Ahmed Salah Atallah Al Suheimat

Member

None

None

Mr. Ismail Issa Ismail Dkeidek Chairman of Board Sadaf Al-Bahar 79,594 79,594
Melissa Suzanne Eben Berry Dkeidek Wife None None None
Dom Al-Riyad for Trade & Investment Co Member None None None
Mr.lyad Ghasoub Jamil Asali Representative None None None
Salam Mohammed Abed AlHadi Najdawi wife None None None
Farah lyad Ghassoub Asali Daughter None None None
Noor lyad Ghassoub Asali Daughter None None None
Hana lyad Ghassoub Asali Daughter None None None
Sadaf Al-Bahar Real Estate Development Co Vice Chairman None None None
Mr.Samer Yousef Kayed Hammad. Representative None None None
Nada Khalil Elias Karam Wife None None None
Faisal Yousef Samer Hammad Son None None None
Ghada Samer Yousef Hammad Daughter None None None
Mesk Samer Yousef Hammad Daughter None None None

None

Hanna Mohammed Al Suheimat

Wife

None

None

None

Mr. Mohamed Rashid Dhiab Hassan. Member None None None
Mai Wafik fared annsour Wife None None None
Rashid Mohamed Rashid Hassan. Son None None None
Abdurrahman Mohamed Rashid Hassan. Son None None None

Al Bilad Medical Services Co. Member None None None
Mr. Ahmed Mohammad Al-Ahmad Representative None None None
Sandy Saleh Mahmoud Abed Wife None None None
Zanah Ahmed Mohammad Al Ahmad Daughter None None None
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Management executive and their Relatives

Mr. Sameer Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh

Relationship

General Manager

Companies

Controlled

No. of shares owned by the

controlling company

None

Mr. Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al Muhtasseb Director, Brokerage None None None
Department
Sara Marwan Noor Al Din Shahdeh Wife None None None
Tala Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al-Muhtasseb Daughter None None None
Daoud Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al Muhtasseb Son None None None
Farah Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al Muhtasseb Daughter None None None
Mohammad Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al Muhtasb Son None None None
Mr. Ahmad Abdelrahim Mustafa Daghmash Acting chief Financial None None None
Manager
Sana’a Hussein Mohammad Zeidan Wife None None None
Amr Ahmad Abdelrahim Daghmash Son None None None
Munther Ahmad Abdelrahim Daghmash Son None None None
Abdelrahim Ahmad Abdelrahim Daghmash Son None None None
Mohammad Ahmad Abdelrahim Daghmash Son None None None
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Eighteenth: Benefits, Awards and Salaries:

(] Benefits and rewards enjoyed by the Chairman and members of the Board of Directors for the year 2020:

Benefits & Travel &transportation
Occupation
rewards Allowances

Chairman Board of
Mr. Sharif Tawfiq Hamad Al Rawashdeh 4,800
Directors

. . . Deputy Chairman Board
Eng. Ismail Issa Ismail Dkeidek 4,800

of Directors

Member Board of
Mr.lyad Ghasoub Jamil Asali. 4,800
Directors

Member Board of
Dr.Issam Adib Ahmad Hashem. 4,800

Directors

Member Board of
Mr.Samer Yousef Kayed Hammad. 4,800
Directors

Member Board of
Mr. Ahmed Mohammad Al-Ahmad 4,800
Directors

Member Board of
Mr. Mohamed Rashid Dhiab Hassan. 4,800
Directors

TOTAL AMOUNT _ 33,600

] Benefits and rewards enjoyed by management executive for the year 2020:

Travel
Benefits &
Occupation Salaries &transportatio
rewards
n Allowances

Mr. Sameer Tawfiq Hamad Al Rawashdeh General Manager 118,887

Mr.Tareq Mohammad Daoud Al Brokerage Department
32,524
Muhtaseb Manager

Mr. Ahmad Abdel Rahim Mustafa Acting Chief Financial
11,121
Daghmash Manager

TOTAL AMOUNT 162,532
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Nineteen: Donations and grants paid by the company:

The value of contributions paid during 2020 amounted to (1,500) JD as follows:

L Miscellaneous donations of 500 |D.

(] Al-Rawashda Diwan Association, with an amount of 1,000 ID.

Twentieth: contracts, projects and commitments that have been adopted

by the company:

1. Subsidiaries, associates or associates: There are no contracts, projects or commitments entered into

with any of them.

2. The Chairman of the Board of Directors, the members of the Board of Directors, the General

Manager or any employee of the Company or their relatives: There are no contracts, projects or

engagements concluded with any of them.

S 2« 9§ & o BB

Twenty First: Contribution to the company in environmental protection or
community service:

The company adopts a social message aimed at enriching its contributions to community service, realizing

that this society has rights and duties on its children, whether they are individuals or companies, and this

has been achieved through several channels according to the following:

A. To work as much as possible to provide all forms of direct and indirect aid to charitable, social and
developmentinstitutions, in order to improve the standard of living for members of society.
Contributing to supporting the provision of job opportunities for members of the community.

Contribute to supporting direct and indirect efforts aimed at developing clean or environmentally

jﬁilad LCaprfas

I =Erlaar Yecorytres & fmeresfmremrnild Lo,

friendly methods and application programs.
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Twenty Two: The Board of Directors acknowledges the following:

1- That there is no material or essential issues that may affect the continuity of the Company during the financial year 2021.

2-That it is responsible for preparing the Financial Statements for the year 2020 and for providing an effective control system for
the Company.

Eng. Ismail Issa Ismail Dkeidek Mr. Samer Yousef Hammad

Chairman of the Board of Directors Representative of Sadaf Al-Bahar Real Estate Development

//,7 Vice Chairman of the board of Directors

g"‘.' Py LK; -
g -

Mr. Ahmed Mohammad Al-Ahmad Mr. Ahmad Salah Suheimat.
Representative of Al bilad medical services co. Member of the Board of Directors.
Member of the Board of Directors

<=

—/_
B oo
Mr. lyad Ghassoub Al-Asali. Mr. Sharif Tawfiq Al-Rawashdeh.
Representative of Dom Al-Riyadh for Trade &Investment Co. Representative of The Green Oasis Housing co..
Member of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors.

Mr. Mohamed Rashid Dhiab Hassan. -
7

Member of the Board of Directo/rz.’

3-That the information and statements mentioned in the Annual Report for 2020 are true, accurate and complete.

Eng Ismail Issa Dkeidek. Mr. Sameer Tawfiq Al-Rawashdeh. Mr. Ahmad Abdel Rahim Daghmash. Acting
Chairman of the Board of Directors. General Manager. Chief Financial Man.:ager.

e

/”j’/,"ﬂ

e e

T Cb -

/

The Board of Directors wishes to extend its sincere gratitude and appreciation to all employees of the Company for the concerted efforts they
exerted to maintain the continuity of the Company and develop its operations forward, and for their contribution towards the success of plans
and visions set by the Company.The Board finally recommends that this auspicious assembly approves the Balance Company Sheet and the
accompanying financial statements for the financial year ending on 31/12/2020.
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Governance Report
0 2o 4 2 2 4 4

Introduction :

Based on the keenness of Al-Bilad Securities and Investment Company to adopt the highest standards of
governance for financial markets, and its awareness of the importance of applying the best governance practices in
all of its operations, and in compliance with the requirements of corporate governance issued by the Securities
Commission, the company was keen to apply the best practices followed in financial institutions in order to
enhance the management approach The company has its belief that establishing sound corporate governance

frameworks is an essential basis for long-term strategic and development planning processes.

Since governance is an integrated and comprehensive approach to managing and organizing the work
environment, business development, implementation of operations and setting internal control procedures,
Albilad Securities Company believes that the application of governance standards and practices would make a
fundamental difference in terms of the success and long-term sustainability of any company. It also affects how

Preparing and evaluating strategic objectives and monitoring risks.

The Covid-19 pandemic constituted a true test of the robustness and efficiency of the governance system in Al-
Bilad for Securities and Investment Company, as the exceptional circumstances that the world went through were
an opportunity to test the company's readiness, decision-making mechanisms and its ability to maintain the
continuity of its operations and activities and to fulfill its obligations towards shareholders, investors, customers
and all parties. Relevant conditions under standard and changing conditions that require a significant degree of
flexibility and adaptation to the new developments and daily changes and require close follow-up of risks in order

to reduce their effects and manage challenges efficiently and competently.

This reportreflects the information and details related to the implementation of the governance rules, in addition
to the names of the company's board of directors and their respective capacities in terms of independence, the
committees emanating from the board, and the memberships of the boards of directors that the members of the
board of directors occupy in public joint-stock companies. The report also refers to the executive management and

the meetings of the committees emanating from the board of directors.
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a Application of governance rules:

Al-Bilad Securities and Investment Company has a firm belief that the application of corporate governance rules and
controls is a fundamental factor for the success of its business because of its importance in enhancing confidence in it and
providing opportunities for comprehensive and sustainable changes in line with the company's values and goals, as it is
one of the leading companies in the application of these rules, and here it is It manages its various operations with an
integrated system of policies and mechanisms aimed at achieving transparency and facilitating the company's completion

of its work at a faster pace in line with the rapid development witnessed by the financial markets.

During the year 2020, the company maintained its continuity by adhering to the governance instructions issued by the
Securities Commission for the year 2017, which provide a comprehensive framework for the governance of listed
companies, including the main principles for protecting shareholders' rights and consolidating the principles related to
strengthening internal control systems. Financial performance and the existence of administrative structures that enable
management to be held accountable to shareholders, with the formation of an audit committee that is not members of the
executive board of directors that have many tasks, specializations and powers to achieve independent monitoring of

implementation.

Details of governance implementation include the following:

Board Meetings:

The Board of Directors held six meetings in the year 2020 upon a written invitation from the Chairman of the Board of
Directors. Decisions were issued by the majority of the attending members through electronic means of communication,

and the minutes of its meetings and decisions were recorded in a special record.

The company’s general assembly meeting:

The general assembly of the company holds a regular meeting once every year during the four months following the end of
the fiscal year, and the meeting is chaired by the chairman of the board of directors in a way that allows shareholders to
actively participate, express their opinions freely, obtain answers to their questions, and provide sufficientinformation to

enable them to make their decisions.

Shareholders' equity :

The company takes appropriate measures to ensure that shareholders obtain their rights in a way that achieves justice and

equality without discrimination, including public rights and rights within the powers of the General Assembly.

Disclosure and Transparency:

The company establishes written work procedures in accordance with the disclosure policy approved by the Board of
Directors to regulate the affairs of disclosure of information and follow up its implementation in accordance with the
requirements of the regulatory authorities and the legislation in force and provide disclosure information to the
shareholders and investors in an accurate, clear and not misleading and at the specified times, including the related
disclosures With periodic reports, essential information, the properties of insiders, and the transactions of the related

parties.
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J The names of the members of the Board and the representatives of the members of the Board

and determine the status of each member

Chairman Of The Board Non-executive member
Eng. Ismail Issa Ismail Dkeidek

Of Directors Non-independent member
Sadaf Al-Bahar Real Estate Development Co Vice Chairman of the Non-executive member
Mr.Samer Yousef Kayed Hammad. board of directors Non-independent member
The Green Oasis Housing co. ber of the hoard Non-executive member

M t
Mr. Sharif Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh emberothe boar Non-independent member
Dom Al-Riyad for Trade & Investment e ot Non-executive member

M t
Co. Mr.lyad Ghasoub Jamil Asali. emberotihe boar Non-independent member
Al Bilad Medical Services Co. Non-executive member

Member of the board
Mr. Ahmed Mohammad Al-Ahmad Non-independent member

Non-executive member
Mr.ahmad Salah Atallah Suheimat. Member of the board

independent member

Mr. Mohamed Rashid Dhiab Hassan. Non-executive member
Member of the board
Non-independent member

L) The executive positions in the company and the names of the persons who occupy them :

° ()
< ()
()
() ® . .0 Sameer ° .. ..
Tawfi ® . () Tareq
General Manager g Director, Brokerage ® Moh d
® Hamad Al- 4 4 ohamma
() . ® . () Rawashdeh .. Department Daoud Al-
L) . () . () Muhtasseb
()

() o< ° ()
° ([ . ® Ahmad
Acting Chief Financia/® Abdelrahim
() Manager Mustafa

() (] Daghmash
0°0
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L  Membership of the Board of Directors held by a member of the Board of Directors of public

shareholding companies:

Members of the board Membership

The Green Oasis Housing co.

Mr. Sharif Tawfiq Hamad Al-Rawashdeh

1. Jordan Commercial Bank .
2. Arabian Aluminum Manufacturing Co.
3. Arab Jordanian Insurance Group.

Eng. Ismail Issa Ismail Dkeidek

Arabia for International Trading and Investments Co. (INMA).

Dom Al-Riyad for Trade &Investment Co. Mr.lyad

Ghasoub Jamil Asali.

None

Mr. Mohamed Rashid Dhiab Hassan.

1- Member Board, Al bilad medical services co

Sadaf Al-Bahar Real Estate Development Co

Mr.Samer Yousef Kayed Hammad.

Arabia for International Trading and Investments Co (INMA).

Mr.ahmad Salah Atallah Suheimat.

None

Al bilad medical services co

Mr. Ahmed Mohammad Al-Ahmad

None

L Name of Corporate Governance Officer :

Mr. Mohammad Issam Othman Dar Mahmoud

J Board Committees:

Council formed four committees and carry out its tasks and responsibilities according to the rules of procedure of the

company are as follows:

**  Audit Committee.

+* Governance Committee.

+* Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
** Risk Management Committee.

/ o
*%* Investment Committee.
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L Name of the chairman and members of the Audit Committee and a description of their

qualifications and experience related to financial and accounting matters:

Member Name Qualification

Mr. lyad Ghassoub - Bachelor's Degree in Business
Jamil Al-Asali. Administration/ Economy and
Chairmen of the statistics, Jordan University,
Committee Amman-Jordan, 1986.

- MBA, American University of
Cairo, Egypt, 1989.

Work Experience

Credit and Marketing Officer, Al-Mashreq Bank, Dubai-UAE,
{1989-1992}.

Director of the Credit Department, ABC Bank, Amman-Jordan,
{1992-1999}.

Chief of the Commercial Bank Services Group, Arab National
Bank, Riyadh-Saudi Arabia, {1999-2007}.

Deputy CEO-of the Corporate Banking Services Group, Jordan
Ahli Bank, Jordan,{2007-2011}.

General Member, International Islamic Arabic Bank, Jordan,

{2011-Till Now}.

Mr.Samer Yousef = Bachelor's Degree in Finance
Kayed Hammad. &Banking science, Yarmouk
Member of the University, 1991.
Committee = Master Degree in Business

Accounting, New York

University, New York- USA,

Deputy Manager &Partner, Center Press Co, Jordan,

{1991- Till Now}.
Manager and Owner, Hammad General Services, Ontario-
Canada, {1999-2011}.
President and Chief Pilot (Volunteer), Royal Jordanian Gliding,
{2004 - Till Now}.

1995 Managerial Board Member, Jordanian Canadian Business

Association, {2005- Till Now}.
Member of the Board of Directors, Al-lnma Investment
&Financing Co, {2012-04/2016}.

Ahmed Mohamed - Bachelor of Accounting, Internal auditor at Aqaba Special Economic Zone Authority -

Mahmoud Al-Ahmad Yarmouk University, 2006 from 2007 to 20009.

Member of the = Member of the Institute of Internal Auditor at Fall Arabia Holding Company Riyadh-Saudi

Committee Internal Auditors (I1A) Arabia from 2012-2015.

Financial Director of Ramle Medical Services Ltd. Riyadh Saudi
Arabia from 2014-2015

Internal auditor in Al-Bilad Medical Services Company from 8-
2016till 1-2018.

Acting General Manager of Al Bilad Medical Services Company
from 9-2016 to 9-2018.

General Manager of Al-Bilad Medical Services Company from

9-2017 to date.
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d Name of Chairman and members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Governance

Committee, the Risk Management Committee and the Investment Committee:

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Governance Committee

Risk Management Committee

Investment Committee

Ismail Issa Ismail Dikidak.
Sherif Tawfiq Al - Rawashdeh.
lyad Ghassoub Jamil Al-Asali.

Mohammad Rashid Dhiab Hassan.

Ismail Issa Ismail Dikidak.
Samer Youssef Hammad.
Sherif Tawfiq Al - Rawashdeh.
Ahmed Mohamed Al-Ahmad
Sameer Tawfiq Al - Rawashdeh.
Sherif Tawfiq Al - Rawashdeh.

Ismail Issa Ismail Dikidak.

Mohammad Rashid Dhiab Hassan.

Ld Number of meetings of each committee with the members present:

Members

Mohammad Rashid Dhiab Hassan.
Ismail Issa Ismail Dikidak.
Samer Youssef Hammad.

Members

Ismail Issa Ismail Dikidak.
Sherif Tawfiq Al - Rawashdeh.
lyad Ghassoub Jamil Al-Asali.

Members
Sherif Tawfiq Al - Rawashdeh.

Ahmed Mohamed Al-Ahmad
Sameer Tawfiq Al - Rawashdeh.

#* The Investment Committee did not hold any meetings during the year 2020

First

\/
\/
\/

First

\/
\/
\/

First

\/
\/
\/
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Member
Member
Chairman
Member
Member
Chairman
Member
Member
Chairman
Member
Member

Governance committee meetings

Second

\/
\/
\/

Nomination and Remuneration committee meetings

Second

\/
\/
\/

Risk Management committee meetings

Second

\/
\/
\/
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L) The number of meetings of the Audit Committee during the year 2020 and the names of the members

present and the number of meetings of the Committee with the External Auditor during the year.

Members Audit committee meetings

First

J
y
y
y

L Number of Board meetings during the year 2019 and names of members present.

Second

\/
\/
\/
\/

Third
\/
\/
\/
\/

Sherif Tawfiq Hamad Al —Rawashdeh
Representative of The Green Oasis Housing
co.

Mr. Samer Yousef Hammad

Representative of Sadaf al bahar Real Estate
Development Co.

Mr. lyad Ghasoub Jamil Al-Asali
Representative of Dom Riyadh for Trading and
Investment co .

Mr. Ahmed Salah Atallah Suheimat

Mr. Ahmed Mohamed Mahmoud Al Ahmad

Representative of Al Bilad Medical Services

Co.

Mr. Mohammad Rasheed Diab Hassan

Chairman Of The Board Of Directors

Ismail Issa Ismail Dikidak

-

—
= u’;
—etlS
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Inciependent Auditors Report

To the General Assembly
Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY
AMMAN- JORDAN

Audit Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Al Bilad Securities and Investment Company
Public Shareholding Company- (“the Company”) and its subsidiary (“ the Group”), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020, the consolidated statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in shareholders’ equity and
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as of December 31, 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards”.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAS). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the note (2-D) of the consolidated financial
statements, which highlights the consolidation of Siwar Al Sharq For Trading (a Subsidiary) in accordance
with exchange of settlement agreement with one of broker receivables, as a result the right of ownership
transferred from old partners to the benefit of the Company against such receivables.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The description of the key audit matters is
presented below:
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1- Determination of fair value of the Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Description of the key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group holds investments in financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income
amounted to JOD 1,495,862 and JOD 1,910,599
as of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019,
respectively, some of these investments are not
guoted in an active market.

Accordingly, the determination of the fair value
requires management to make several judgments
and assessments and to rely on non-listed prices
inputs. Consequently, management’s fair value
estimation of these assets was significant to our
audit.

Audit  procedures included evaluating internal
procedures relating to the determination of financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
and examination of their efficiency. In addition to
evaluate the estimates adopted by the Group’s
management to determine the fair value in stock market.
Moreover, these estimates have been compared to the
requirements of International Financial Reporting
Standards and discussed in light of available information.

The audit procedures also included evaluating the
adopted methodology, appropriateness of evaluation
models, and inputs used to determine the fair value of
financial assets. They also included reviewing the
reasonableness of the most significant inputs in the
evaluation process through reviewing investee
companies’ financial statements.

Expected credit losses

Description of the key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group has financial assets at amortized cost
(net) amounted to JOD 2,706,886 and JOD
3,173,803 as of December 31, 2020 and
December 31, 2019 respectively.

The adequacy of the provisions depends on
management’s estimates. Consequently, this
matter is significant to our audit.

In addition, the application of IFRS no. (9) has
affected the management's estimate in calculating
the provision for the expected credit losses on
these receivables.

The audit procedures include considering the internal
control system related to collection of the brokerage
receivables, the acceptance of new customers, and
review of the cash received in the subsequent period
until the end of the financial year, testing the adequacy of
the expected credit losses provision recorded on
Financial assets at amortized cost through evaluating the
management assumptions regarding receivables aging.
We also review the available external information of due
receivables risks, and our experience regarding the
expected credit losses provision in this sector. The
evaluation also include the evaluating of real estate or
customers portfolios held as collaterals against
receivables due for more than three months. The audit
procedures also includes an assessment of the
reasonableness of the assumptions adopted by the
management regarding the calculation of the expected
credit losses provision based on the market information
and the specific patterns selected by management, as well
as the recalculation of this provision and the disclosure
of its impact on the consolidated financial statements for
the current year.
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Investment in Associate

Description of the key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ne Group has investment in associate amounted to
434,167 JOD and 2,245,266 JOD as at 31
scember 2020 and 31 December 2019,
spectively.

The audit procedures include reviewing the
associate’s financial statements and reviewing the
audit procedures and working papers prepared by the
associate’s auditor. In addition, our audit procedures

include evaluating the basis used to calculate the
Group share of profit from associate, and evaluate
the estimates and assumptions followed by the
Group to identify impairment indications on the
investment, in which these estimates and
assumptions have been compared with the
requirements of International financial reporting
standards and discussed in the presence of current
information.

The Group owns 27.6% of the associate’s net
assets in which the group has significant
influence over the associate, therefore, the
accounting treatment for the investment is being
treated using the equity method.

This investment is listed in active market, which
determining the fair value for these investments.
In addition, the Group, on annual basis, perform
a study to evaluate if there is any indication for
impairment, which require management to make
several judgments and assessments, accordingly,
it considered a key audit matter.

The audit procedures also included evaluating the
adopted methodology, appropriateness of evaluation
models, and input used to determine the fair value of
investment in associate. They also included
reviewing the reasonableness of the most significant
inputs in the evaluation process, through reviewing
associate financial statements.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report on the consolidated financial statements.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, we consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We were not provided with the annual report of the company or any other information as it
relates to this paragraph until the date of this report.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated

Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the consolidated disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the (consolidated) financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Group maintains proper accounting records. The accompanying consolidated financial statements are,
in all material aspects, in agreement with the Group’s accounting records, and we recommend that the
Group’s General Assembly to approve these consolidated financial statements, considering the Emphasis
of Matter paragraph included in our report.

KPMG Kawasmy and Partners

Hatem Kawasmy i - ) Amman - Jordan

License no. (656) March 31, 2021

KPMG

Kawasmy & Partners Co.




Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Jordanian Dinar

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets at amortized cost
Other debit balances
Total-Current Assets

Non- Current Assets

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Investment in associate

Property and equipment
Investment properties

Right of use assets
Intangible assets

Brokerage license

Deferred tax assets

Total Non- Current Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Due to banks

Brokerage customer payable

Leased liability- short-term

Other credit balances

Total Current liabilities

Non-current liability
Leased liability- long-term
Total non-current liability
Total Liabilities

Shareholders’ equity
Paid-up capital

Statutory reserve

Fair value reserve
Accumulated losses

Net Shareholders’ Equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

As at December 31,

Notes 2020 2019
6 280,843 178,524
7 2,706,886 3,173,803
8 353,119 352,289

3,340,848 3,704,616

9 1,495,862 1,910,599
10 2,434,167 2,245,266
11 52,005 75,063
12 732,738 737,363
13 124,600 166,120
14 1,742 3,541
15 1 1
16 1,165,098 1,025,098
6,006,213 6,163,051

9,347,061 9,867,667

17,6 1,075,822 996,009
18 288,428 179,157
19 41,228 44,835
20 222,999 209,984
1,628,477 1,429,985

19 96,206 83,072
96,206 83,072

1,724,683 1,513,057

1 10,000,000 10,000,000
21 516,729 516,729
9,10 (1,430,307) (1,256,872)
(1,464,044) (905,247)

7,622,378 8,354,610

9,347,061 9,867,667

* The accompanying notes on pages from (10) to (39) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
* The consolidated financial statements were approved by page (10) to (39) by board of directors 24 March 2021 and

Chairman of Board of Directors

signed by:

General Manager Financial Manager




Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

For the year ended December 31,

Jordanian Dinar Notes 2020 2019
Revenues

Brokerage Commissions 129,466 201,626
Interest revenue customer margin accounts 76,895 75,503
Bank interest’s revenue 948 2,334
Investment Management revenue : 3
Company share of results from an associate 10 218,716 219,000
Other revenue 22 7,751 11,150
Reversed from expected credit losses 7,8 3,019 443,000
Total revenue 436,795 952,666
Expenses

Administrative expenses 23 (390,467) (431,249)
Finance expenses 24 (109,718) (130,855)

11,12,

Depreciation and amortization 13,14 (74,072) (88,297)
Expected credit losses allowance 7,8 (503,019) (200,000)
Total expenses (1,077,266) (850,401)
(Loss) Income for the year before income tax (640,481) 102,265
Income tax surplus (Expense) 16 140,000 (90,171)
(Loss) Profit for the year (500,481) 12,094

Other consolidated comprehensive income items:
Gain on sale of financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income 53,549 168,211
Net change in the fair value of the financial assets at fair (285,300) (494,987)
value through other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive (loss) for the year (732,232) (314,682)
Basic and diluted (losses) earning per share 25 (0.050) 0.001

The accompanying notes on pages from (10) to (39) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Chairman of Board of Directors General Manager Financial Manager




Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Jordanian Dinar

Changes for the year ended December 31, 2020

Balance at 1 January 2020
Profit for the year

Change in fair value of the financial assets through other comprehensive
income

Gain from selling financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Transfer from change in fair value

Balance at 31 December 2020

Changes for the year ended December 31, 2019
Balance at 1 January 2019
Profit for the year

Change in fair value of the financial assets through other comprehensive
income
Gain from selling financial assets

Transfer from change in fair value
Balance at 31 December 2019

Net
Statutory Fair value (Accumulated) Shareholders’
Paid-up Capital Reserve reserve * losses ** Equity
10,000,000 516,729 (1,256,872) (905,247) 8,354,610
- - - (500,481) (500,481)
- - (285,300) - (285,300)
- - - 53,549 53,549
] ; 111,865 (111,865) -
10,000,000 516,729 (1,430,307) (1,464,044) 7,622,378
10,000,000 516,729 (966,103) (881,334) 8,669,292
i i i 12,004 12,094
i - (494,987) - (494,987)
- - - 168,211 168,211
- - 204,218 (204,218) .
10,000,000 516,729 (1,256,872) (905,247) 8,354,610

* According to the Jordanian Securities Commission instructions the negative value of the fair value reserve amounting to JOD (1,430,307) is prohibited from distribution to the

Shareholders as of December 31, 2020 (2019: JOD (1,256,872)).

accordance with the instructions of Jordanian Securities Commission.

The accompanying notes on pages from (10) to (39) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

** The accumulated losses as at December 31, 2020 include deferred tax assets of JOD 1,165,098 (2019: JOD 1,025,098) prohibited from use or distribution to the shareholders in



Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Jordanian Dinar
Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit for the year before income tax(Loss)

Adjustments for:

Finance expenses

Depreciation and amortization

Company share of results from associate company
Provision (Reversed) from of expected credit losses

Gain from selling financial asset through other

comprehensive Income

Changes in working capital items:
Financial assets at amortized cost
Other debit balances

Brokerage customer payables

Other credit balances

Cash flow (used in) from operating activities

Finance expense paid
Income tax paid
Net cash flow(used in) from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payment on purchase of property and equipment
Payment on purchase of intangible assets

Payment on purchase of investment in associate
company

Financial assets through other comprehensive income
Net cash flow from investing activities

Cash flow from Financing activities
Leased liability
Cash flow (used in) financing Activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Non-cash item

Investment property against settlement of Accounts
receivable

Right of Use

Leased Liability

For the year ended December 31,

Notes 2020 2019
(640,481) 102,265
24 109,718 130,855
11,12,13,14 74,072 88,297
10 (218,716) (219,000)
7.8 500,000 (243,000)
(68,633) (36,007)
(244,040) (176,590)
(33,083) 548,264
(830) 24,606
109,271 (147,337)
13,015 (14,029)
(155,667) 234,914
(98,528) (130,855)
16 - (56,066)
(254,195) 47,993
11 (2,478) (2,674)
14 (592) -
3,779 -
275,992 319,559
276,701 316,885
- (79,735)
- (79,735)
22,506 285,143
6 (817,485) (1,102,628)
6 (794,979) (817,485)
166,120 207,642
148,624 142,147

The accompanying notes on pages from (10) to (39) are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GENERAL

Al Bilad Securities and Investment Company was established as a public shareholding company, on 22
March 2006 and registered with the Ministry of Industry and Trade of the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan
under the number (397), in the book of public shareholding stock companies with a capital of 10 million
Jordanian dinar, and the most important goals of the company is acting as an intermediary in Amman
stock exchange, according to the Jordan securities commission law and regulations.

On April 16, 2009, the capital has increased from 10 million Jordanian dinar to 11.5 million dinar through
capitalizing part from retained earnings. On May 5, 2010, the capital increased from 11.5 million
Jordanian dinars to 12 million Jordanian dinars through capitalizing part from retained earnings.

On June 18, 2013, the capital has decreased from 12 million Jordanian dinar to 10 million Jordanian
dinars through amortizing the full-accumulated losses.

The Company shares is listed on the Amman Stock Exchange.

The Company is located in Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2021 and
is subject to general assembly approval.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statement preparation in accordance to International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).

(b)Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial
assets of fair value through other comprehensive income which we measured as fair value.

(c) Functional and presentation currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Jordanian Dinar, which is the group's functional
currency.

(d)Basis of consolidating financial statements
The consolidated financial statements include the consolidated financial statements for the Company and
its following subsidiary, after the elimination of transactions and balances between them, the Company
has the following subsidiary as of December 31, 2020:

Ownership Country of Year of
Company Name Capital Percentage Nature of operation operation acquisition
Siwar Al Sharq For Possession of movable
Trading Company 1,000 %100 and immovable property Jordan 20 June 2018

The following is the most important information about the subsidiary as of December 31, 2020 & 2019:

As of 31 December, 2020

In Jordanian Dinar Assets Liabilities Revenues Expenses
Siwar Al Sharq For Trading Company 159,000 158,500 - -

As of 31 December, 2019
In Jordanian Dinar Assets Liabilities Revenues Expenses
Siwar Al Sharg For Trading Company 159,000 158,300 - 500
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Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Siwar Al- Sharg for Trading Company has been consolidated according to a settlement agreement for
brokerage customers receivables, through which previous owners' shares have been waived to the Group
against these receivables

The Company accounts for business combinations of a subsidiary in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income starting from the date of the acquisition which is the date when
control is transferred from the company to the group.

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is transferred
to the Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are
the identifiable net assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment.

Any gain on bargain purchases is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income immediately. Transactions costs are expensed as incurred in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income except if related to the issue of debt or equity
securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationship. Such amounts are generally recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent
consideration is classified as shareholders’ equity, then it is not re-measured, and settlement is accounted
for within Shareholder’s equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Non-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquire identifiable net assets
at the acquisition date.

On the loss of control, the Group derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-
controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit
arising on the loss of control is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Balances, transactions and unrealized profits and expenses resulted from transactions within the Group
are eliminated when preparing these consolidated financial statements.

(e) Use of judgments and estimates
In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgements and estimates
that affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognized prospectively.
e Judgments

The following are the most significant judgments that have a material effect on the amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements:

Classification of financial assets: Valuation of the business model under which the asset is to be held and
determining whether the contractual terms of the SPPI are on the outstanding balance.

The development of new criteria to determine whether financial assets have declined significantly since
initial recognition and determine the methodology of future expectations and methods of measuring
expected credit loss.
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Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at December 31, 2020 that have significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next
financial year is included in the following notes:

Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which deductible
temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be utilised;

The administration re-estimates the useful lives of property, equipment and assets periodically,
depending on the general condition of these assets and the management's expectations for their future
useful lives.

Impairment test of intangible assets: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts, including the
recoverability of development costs; and periodically reassessment of the economic useful lives of
intangible assets based on the general condition of these assets and the expectation for their useful
economic lives in the future.

Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood
and magnitude of an outflow of resources;

Measurement of ECL allowance for trade receivables and contract assets: key assumptions in
determining the weighted-average loss rate; and

Impairment test of Investment property: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts, and
periodically reassessment of the economic useful lives of Investment property based on the general
condition of these assets and the expectation for their useful economic lives in the future.

Measurement of fair values:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date Under one of the following conditions:
1. In the principal markets for the asset or liability, or

2. In the most advantageous market for assets and liabilities, in the absence of major markets.

Assets and liabilities may be associated with fair value in the following two cases:

a. When the asset or liability exists in itself.

b. When there is a group of assets or a group of liabilities or a group of assets with liabilities (for example
a cash-generating unit or a business) and a number of the group's accounting policies and disclosures
require measuring the fair value of both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.
This includes a valuation team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value
measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the chief financial officer.

The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third
party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the
valuation team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these
valuations meet the requirements of the Standards, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which
the valuations should be classified.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Group’s Board of Directors.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows.

—Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

—Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

—Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

12
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Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

The management’s believe that the accounting estimates and assumptions used are resonable and
sufficient.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies applied by the Group in these consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2020 are the same as those applied by the Group in its consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2019, except for the following new International Financial
Reporting Standards or amendments that become effective after January 1,2020:

Amendments to the references to the conceptual framework in the International Financial Reporting
Standards (effective January 1, 2020).

Amendments to IAS (1) and IAS. (8) “Definition of Materiality” (to be applied on January 1, 2020).
Amendments to [FRS (3) “Business Definition” (to be applied on January 1, 2020).

Amendments to the IFRS (9) and the IFRS (7) and 1AS (39) restructuring the reference rate of interest.

Management expects that each of the aforementioned standards and amendments will be applied in the
consolidated financial statements at the dates mentioned above and will not have a material impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

Financial assets and liabilities:
Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables, loans and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All
other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial
liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial Assets:

Regards to IFRS(9) On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost;
FVOCI — debt investment; FVOCI — equity investment; or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes
its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss:

It’s held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows.

Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it meets both of the
following conditions and is not designated as at fair value through profit or loss:

It’s held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets.

Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows (that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding).
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Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in other comprehensive income. This
election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income as described above are measured at fair value through profit or loss. This includes
all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income as at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets — Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

How managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

The frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets — Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial
asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such
that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

Contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

Terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;

Prepayment and extension features; and

Terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable compensation for early termination of the contract.
Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual paramount, a
feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par
amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable compensation
for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature
is insignificant at initial recognition.
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Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial assets — Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortized cost | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit
or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are never reclassified to
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in
profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of financial
position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In
these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified
and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and
the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Amendments to financial assets and liabilities
Adjusted financial assets

If the terms of the financial assets are revised, the group evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified
assets are significantly different. If the cash flows differ significantly, then the contractual rights to the
cash flows are derecognised from the original financial assets, and new financial assets are recognized at
fair value and any related costs are added to them. Any commissions received as part of the adjustment
are calculated as follows:

- Fees for determining the fair value of new assets and fees that represent compensation for costs related
to the new assets are included in the initial measurement of the new financial assets.

-Other fees are included in profit or loss as part of the profit or loss upon derecognition.

If the cash flows are adjusted in the event that the borrower encounters financial difficulties, the goal of
the adjustment is generally to maximize the recoverable value of the original contractual terms rather
than creating a new asset under different terms. Whether an impairment will be calculated on a portion
of the financial assets before making the adjustment to the financial assets. This approach affects the
outcome of the quantitative evaluation and means that criteria for derecognition are not met in such cases.

Adjusted financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when their terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified financial liabilities differ materially. In this case, new financial liabilities are recognized at fair
value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liabilities that were derecognized and
the amounts disbursed is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

b) Impairment
- Financial assets at amortized cost;
- Debt instruments through other consolidated comprehensive income; And the
Contract assets.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to the expected credit loss over the life of the
asset, except for the following, for which the 12-month ECL is measured:

- Debt instruments that have been determined to have low credit risk at the date of the financial
statements.

- Debt instruments and other bank balances that the credit risk (that is, the risk of default that occurs
over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since the initial
recognition.

- Loss allowances for receivables from related parties and contractual assets are always measured at an
amount equal to the expected credit losses over the life of the asset.

In determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since its initial
recognition and in estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers that the information that is
reasonable and supported is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and a
well-thought-out credit evaluation, including future information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on the financial assets has increased significantly if they are
defaulting for more than 90 days from their maturity date.

The Group considers the financial assets to be impaired when:

- It is unlikely that the borrower will pay its credit obligations to the group in full, without consulting the
group on procedures such as liquidating the guarantee (if any); or

- The date of the financial assets is more than 90 days old.
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The Group considers a financial asset with a lower credit risk when the credit risk rating of a financial
asset is “investment grade”.

Life Expected Credit Losses (ECLS) are the expected credit losses that result from all potential defaults
over the expected life of a financial instrument.

The 12-month ECL is part of the expected credit loss that results from possible hypothetical events after
12 months within the financial statement date (or for a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument
is less than 12 months).

The maximum period in estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual cycle in which the
company is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and debt
securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

A breach of contract.

The restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

It is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognized in OCI.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. For individual customers,
the Company has a policy of writing off the gross carrying amount when the financial asset is past due
based on historical experience of recoveries of similar assets. For corporate customers, the Company
individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether
there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the
amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than
biological assets, investment property, inventories, contract assets and deferred tax assets) to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest Company of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs. Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the
CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Property and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

If significant parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property and equipment less their estimated
residual values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognized
in profit or loss. Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property and equipment for current and comparative periods are as follows:

Property and equipment Depreciation rates
Furnitures and fixtures 15%
Decorations 20%
Machinery and equipment 15%
Vehicles 15%
Computers 25%

Zarga branch fixed assets 15% - 25%

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with definite useful lives are amortized over their useful lives and are recognized at cost
less accumulated amortization less any impairment. Amortization of assets shall be recognized in the
statement of profit or loss. However, intangible assets with an indefinite useful life should not be
amortized and it is required to be tested for impairment as at the consolidated financial statement date.

Intangible assets Amortization Rate
Computer Programs 25%
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Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both,
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Investment properties are recognized initially at cost. Their fair values are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. Investment properties are revalued
annually by independent real-estate experts based on market values, being the estimated amount for
which a property could be exchanged on the date of the valuation between a willing buyer and a willing
seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted
knowledgeably and willingly.

Depreciation expense is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight — line basis using a rate of 2%.

Investment in associate

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over the financial and operating policies.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method. They are recognized initially at
cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial statements include
the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the investees

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the considerations specified in the contract with the customer. Where the
Group recognizes revenue when it transfers control, at a specific time or over time - a good or service to
a customer.

Contract (s) with the customer: A contract is defined as an agreement between two or more parties that
creates enforceable rights and obligations.

Determine performance obligations in the contract.

Transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of revenue that the group expects to receive in
exchange for transferring services to the customer, except for the consideration that are collected on behalf
of third parties.

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that contains
more than one performance obligation, the company will allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation in an amount that indicates the amount of return that the group expects to receive
in exchange for fulfilling each performance obligation.

The Group recognizes revenue when the Group meets a customer's performance obligation at a specified
time or over time.

The group fulfills the performance obligation and recognizes revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

- The group's performance obligation creates and / or improves the assets the customer controls when

creating or improving the asset; or

- The performance of the group does not lead to the creation of an asset with an alternative use of the group

and the group has an enforceable right to pay for the performance completed so far.

(e) Lease contracts

The company recognizes the right to use the asset and the liabilities of the lease contract at the
commencement of the lease agreement. Where the right to use is measured upon initial recognition of
cost, and later at cost minus accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and is adjusted in the event
of a re-measurement of the lease liability. The right to use the asset is recognized at cost upon registration
and is subsequently measured at fair value in accordance with the company's accounting policies.
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The liabilities associated with the lease contracts are measured at the initial recognition of the present
value of the unpaid lease payments on the date of the lease, discounted using the interest rate implicitly
specified in the lease agreement. If it cannot be determined, the borrowing rate used by the company is
used. Usually the borrowing rate used by the company is used.

Subsequently, the lease liability is increased through the interest cost versus the lease liability and
decreased by the lease payments. Lease liabilities are re-measured when there is a change in future lease
payments as a result of a change in a certain index or percentage, and when there is a change in
management’s estimates regarding the value payable under the residual value guarantee, or when the
company's plan changes regarding the exercise of the purchase option, Renewal or termination of the
contract.

The company has applied the estimates and judgments related to determining the term of the lease
contract for some lease contracts in which the lessee has the right to renewal options. The assessment of
whether the company has reasonable certainty in exercising such options affects the term of the lease
contract, and thus significantly affects the value of the obligations against the lease contracts and the
rights to use the assets recognized.

(f) _Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which the group has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects
its non-performance risk.

A number of the group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities when one is available, the group measures the fair
value of an instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded
as ‘active’ if transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the group uses valuation techniques that maximize
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation
technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would consider in pricing a transaction.

If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the group measures
assets and long positions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an ask price.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the
transaction price — i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Group determines that
the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced
neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation
technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation to the
measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the
difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price.

Subsequently, that difference is recognized in the consolidated profit or loss on an appropriate basis over
the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market
data or the transaction is closed out.

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present (legal or contractual)
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation.

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the group has obligations (legal or contractual) at the date of the
consolidated statement of financial position arising from past events and the settlement of the obligations
is likely to result in an outflow of economic benefits and their value can be measured reliably. Provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability

Finance expenses

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings. All borrowing costs that are not directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income using the effective interest
method.

Offsetting
Financial liabilities are set off against financial assets, and the net amount is shown in the consolidated

financial position only when the obliging legal rights are available and when settled on net basis or the
realization of assets or settlement of liabilities is done at the same time.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined
by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are translated at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to
Jordanian Dinar at the exchange rate at that date.

The foreign currency gain (loss) on monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in Jordanian
Dinar at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest rate and payments during the year, and
the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the year.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are
retranslated to Jordanian Dinar at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Income tax and National contribution

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss except, to the extent that, it relates to a business combination,
or items recognized directly in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they
reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. The
amendments over the Amended Income Tax Law No. 38 of 2018 will be reflected in the calculation of
the deferred taxes measured as of the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences,
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
utilized.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Current tax payable is calculated at the tax rate of 24% in accordance with the amended income tax law
for 2018, and national contribution rate is 4% as per the amended income tax law.

Standards and interpretations not yet adopted
A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after January 1, 2019 and earlier
application is permitted; however, the Group has not early adopted the new or amended standards in
preparing these consolidated financial statements:

New standards

IFRS (17) Insurance Contracts (to be applied on January 1, 2021, with early application permitted only
for companies that have implemented IFRS 9).

Adjustments

Amendments to IFRS (10) and IAS (28) Sale or contribution to assets between the investor and its
partners in the joint venture (the date of application is not specified).

Amendments to IAS (1) regarding classification of liabilities as current liabilities and non-current
liabilities (to be applied on January 1, 2022).

The Group anticipates that each of the above standards and amendments will be adopted in the
consolidated financial statements by its date mentioned above without having any material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a group of components of the Group affected by risks and returns that distinguish
it from others and engages in producing products or services known as operating segments or engages in
producing products or services within specific economic environment that distinguish it from other sectors
known as geographical segments.
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A- Operating Segment

The Group operates its activities in major operating segments, which represents the follows:

- Brokerage.
- Investments.

Jordanian Dinar

Brokerage commission

Interest revenue on customer
margin accounts

Bank interests

Investment Management revenue
Company share of results
associate company

Other revenue

Reversed from (provision)
expected credit losses

Total Revenue
Administrative expenses

Finance expenses
Depreciation and amortization

Total expenses

Total segment assets
Total segment liabilities

B- Geographical Segment

As of December 31, 2020

As of December 31, 2019

6) Cash and cash equivalents

Jordanian Dinar

Cash at banks — current accounts*
Cash at banks — customer currents account™

Cash on hand
Total

Due to banks (Note 17)
Cash and Cash Equivalents for cash flow purpose

7)  Einancial assets at amortized cost

Jordanian Dinar

Brokerage customer receivables
Finance customer receivables on margin
Related parties’ receivables note (26-1)

Less: Expected credit losses provision

Brokerage customers receivables
Margin customers receivables

Brokerage Investments Total Brokerage  Investments Total
129,466 - 129,466 201,626 - 201,626
76,895 - 76,895 75,503 - 75,503
948 - 948 2,334 - 2,334
- - - 53 - 53
- 218,716 218,716 - 219,000 219,000
- 7,751 7,751 - 11,150 11,150
(500,000) - (500,000) 243,000 - 243,000
(292,691) 226,467 (66,224) 522,516 230,150 752,666
(390,467) - (390,467) (431,249) - (431,249)
(109,718) - (109,718) (130,855) - (130,855)
(69,447) (4,625) (74,072) (83,672) (4,625) (88,297)
(569,632) (4,625)  (574,257) (645,776) (4,625)  (650,401)
4,684,294 4,662,767 9,347,061 4,974,439 4,893,228 9,867,667
(1,724,683) - (1,724,683) (1,513,057) - (1,513,057)
The Group operated its activities inside the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan.
As at December 31,
2020 2019
6,365 12,781
274,081 165,463
397 280
280,843 178,524
(1,075,822) (996,009)
(794,979) (817,485)
* These bank account bears an interest of 1% annually for the years 2020 and 2019.
This item represents brokerage customers receivables, and it is as follow:
As at December 31,
2020 2019
3,773,907 3,777,076
3,045,807 3,009,042
2,926 420
6,822,640 6,786,538
(1,887,416) (1,884,397)
(2,228,338) (1,728,338)
2,706,886 3,173,803
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* The movement on provision expected credit loss was as follows:
For the year ended December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,612,735 3,903,920
Additions during the year 503,019 151,815
(Reversed) during the year - (443,000)
4,115,754 3,612,735

The following is brokerage customer receivables aging
A) The following table describe the aging for brokerage customer receivables:
As at December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019
Less than 30 days 1,566,639 901,699
From 31 to 90 days 177,411 977,611
From 91 to 180 days - 174
More than 180 days 2,029,857 1,897,592
Balance at the end of year (A) 3,773,907 3,777,076
B) The following table describe the age of finance customer receivables on margin including related party
receivables:
As of December 31,
Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019
Less than 30 days 6,600 9,407
From 31 to 90 days 16,267 13,547
From 91 to 180 days 22,173 80,267
More than 180 days 3,003,693 2,906,241
Balance at the end of year (B) 3,048,733 3,009,462
Total (A)+(B) 6,822,640 6,786,538

The impairment losses have been calculated according to the requirements of IFRS no (9), financial
instruments, in accordance with the following rules:

Under IFRS (9), impairment loss is measured on either of the following bases:

e 12-month ECLs: these are ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date.

o Lifetime ECLs: These ECLs result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument

The Group measures impairment allowances equal to expected credit losses within 12 months if these
assets are classified as Tier 1 and have the following characteristics:

e Debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
e Other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

o the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
The expected impairment of the life of the financial instrument to maturity is calculated in the event of
a significant increase in credit risk, which requires to transfer the financial instrument from Tier 1 to
Tier 2, or if the financial instrument applies to specific cases with the standard, which requires the
group to classify the assets directly within the second tier.
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The financial instrument is impaired, when there is an objective evidence of impairment, as a result of
a loss that have negative impact on the estimated future cash flow, accordingly the financial instrument
is transferred to third tier, and the expected credit loss model requires recognition of the expected loss
over the life of the asset debt instruments are very similar to the requirements of IAS (39).

When determining whether the credit risk of financial assets has increased significantly since initial
recognition and in estimating the expected credit loss, the group relies on reasonable and supportive
information available and relevant, including quantitative and qualitative information and analysis of
this information based on the Group's past experience and credit study.

The group considers financial assets to be impaired when:

The borrower likely be unable to pay its credit obligations to the group without recourse to the
procedures for using the collateral held against such obligations (if any).

If more than, 90 days have elapsed on maturity of financial assets.

The expected credit loss calculation mechanism depends on the (probability of default), which is
calculated according to the credit risk and future economic factors, (loss given default), which depends
on the value of the existing collateral, the (exposure at default), The expected credit loss is discounted
at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

At each financial period, the group evaluates the credit rating of financial assets at amortized cost and
debt securities at fair value through the cosolidated statement of other comprehensive income. The credit
rating of financial assets is considered to be impaired when one or more events that have a negative
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset occur.

Provisions loss for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the total carrying
amount of the financial asset. For debt securities at fair value through other comprehensive income, the
provision for impairment is recognized in the consoldiated statement of other comprehensive income
and is not deducted from the carrying amount of the financial asset. The losses of other financial assets
are presented under 'Financing expenses' in the same manner of disclosure used in accordance with IAS
(39). Such disclosure is not included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income based on material considerations.

-The brokerage customers receivables and customer margin interest receivables aged for more than 90

days which are not covered by shares amounted to 722,652 JOD for the year ended December 31, 2020,
(2019: JOD 755,657) are secured by property amounted to fair value as of 31 December 2020: 4,962,125
JOD, (2019: JOD 4,962,125) assessed by an independent real estate valuator using input assess in the
second level, and the company raised an executive case related to pledge on immovable property against
account receivable amounted 900,000 and the case is still within the executive procedures.

-During the year ended December 31, 2018, a receivable settlement agreement was signed at the

Company's Financial Brokerage Department amounting to 132,502 JD. The partners of Siwar Al Sharq
Trading Company, registered at the Companies Controller as a limited liability company under No.
(30101), waived the amount of their shares in the said company in favor of Al-Bilad for Securities and
Investment Company with a total value of 165,560 JD against the above-mentioned bad debt settlement,
resulting in a full reduction in the value of the debt and recording the amount due for this investment of
30,057 JD under other credit balances. In accordance with the instructions of the Securities Commission,
the investment property amounted to 159,000 JOD (note 12) must be disposed of within two years from
the date of acquisition.
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Other debit balances

Jordanian Dinar

Bank guarantees deposits

Settlement guarantee fund

Prepaid expenses

Accrued revenue

Employees receivable

Securities depository Center receivable
Refundable deposits

Income tax on bank interest

Other receivables*

Expected credit loss**

As of December 31,
2020 2019

119,075 116,769
25000 50,000
25,478 29,334
7,945 7,945
4,325 4,898
27,511 3,688
3,130 3,130
406 339
185,415 184,371
(45,166) (48,185)
353,119 352,289

*This item includes an amount of 140,249 JD due from Inmaa Development and International Investment
Company - Public Shareholding Company- as of December 31, 2020 (31 December 2019: 136,186 JD)

guaranteed by a first-class mortgage for the Company in the amount of JD 900,000.

**The movement on provision expected credit loss was as follows:

For the year ended December 31,

Jordanian Dinar

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
(Reversed) during the year

Financial assets in fair value through other comprehensive income

Jordanian Dinar

Shares of companies listed on the Amman Stock Exchange
Portfolio of financial assets*
Net change in fair value

Shares of companies Not listed on the Stock Exchange
Saraya Agaba Real Estate Development Company**
Net change in fair value

Total

2020 2019
48,185 -
- 48,185
(3,019) -
45,166 48,185
As of December 31,
2020 2019
2,273,238 2,550,893
(821,861) (729,779)
1,451,377 1,821,114
616,578 616,578
(572,093) (527,093)
44 485 89,485
1,495,862 1,910,599

* Financial assets include shares of listed companies in Amman Stock Exchange with fair value
amounted to as of 31 December 2020: 957,972 JD (31 December 2019: 1,251,387 JD) at the date of
the consolidated financial statements are mortgaged to Jordan Commercial Bank for bank facilities

(Note 17).

** Financial assets include shares of listed companies in Amman Stock Exchange with fair value amounted
to as of 31 December 2020: 21,600 JD (2019: 23,000 JD), and are mortgaged against board

membership.

26



Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

***The fair value of Saraya Agaba Real Estate Development Company shares are evaluated according to
the net book value of the Company’s asset since they are not listed in financial market Securities, in
the opinion of the Group’s management there is no impairment in its value. In addition, the Company
has a real estate project that is expected to be completed in 2022. The cost recovery depends on the
completion of its implementation and the realization of cash flows in accordance with the cash flows
of this project.

10) Investment in associates’ company
In Jordanian dinar

Country of
Description Incorporation Legal description Ownership %

Arab Jordanian The Hashemite Limited - listed %27.59
Insurance Group Kingdom of Jordan Company
This item includes the following:

As of December 31,
Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019
Fair value to invest in associates’ company 1,862,289 1,862,289
Additions during the year (3,779) -
Cost purchase / invest in associates company 1,858,510 1,862,289

The Company's share of net assets of the associate
(27.656% and 27.59%)

Opening balance 2,241,487 2,026,266
Share of profit during the year 218,716 219,000
Change in fair value (36,353) -
Gain from selling financial assets through other 10.317 )
comprehensive income :

Total 2,434,167 2,245,266
Company’s profit from investing in associate 192,680 219,000

The following table summarizes the financial information for the investments in an affiliate company:

In Jordanian dinar Other
% Total Total comprehensive

Ownership Assets Liabilities Revenue Expenses Profit Income
31 December 2020 %27.59 26,275,230 17,454,185 17,488,422 (16,095,688) 1,251,558 1,157,206
31 December 2019 %25.656 26,199,095 18,070,353 17,626,739 (16,481,193) 1,017,400 1,017,400

Some of the shares of the associate company are mortgaged in favor of the Commercial Bank of Jordan,
with their fair value as of 31 December 2020: 930,902 JD (as of 31 December 2019: 770,006 JD). In
addition, the shares of the associate company include shares of companies listed in the Amman security
exchange commission whose fair value as of December 31, 2020: 2,430 dinars are reserved in exchange
for membership of the board of directors.

The Group's share of the interests of the associate was calculated based on the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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11) Property and equipment

Al Zarqa’

Jordanian Dinar Furniture and Tools, Computer Branch

Fixture Decorations Equipment Vehicles Equipment Assets Total
As at December 31, 2020
Cost
Balance as at January 1, 2020 107,097 74,947 94,708 67,233 119,666 9,335 472,986
Additions - - - - 2,478 - 2,478
Balance as at December 31, 2020 107,097 74,947 94,708 67,233 122,144 9,335 475,464
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at January 1, 2020 89,549 74,943 79,872 36,152 114,798 2,609 397,923
Depreciation for the year 6,538 - 6,290 7,805 2,569 2,334 25,536
Balance as at December 31, 2020 96,087 74,943 86,162 43,957 117,367 4,943 423,459
Net book value as at December 31, 2020 11,010 4 8,546 23,276 4777 4,392 52,005
As at December 31, 2019
Cost
Balance as at January 1, 2019 106,637 74,947 94,708 67,233 118,787 8,000 470,312
Additions 460 - - - 879 1,335 2,674
Balance as at December 31, 2019 107,097 74,947 94,708 67,233 119,666 9,335 472,986
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at January 1, 2019 83,045 63,925 73,408 26,067 111,146 500 358,091
Depreciation for the year 6,504 11,018 6,464 10,085 3,652 2,109 39,832
Balance as at December 31, 2019 89,549 74,943 79,872 36,152 114,798 2,609 397,923
Net book value as at December 31, 2019 17548 4 14,836 31,081 4,868 6,726 75,063
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12) Investment property

Jordanian Dinar Land Buildings Total

Cost

Balance as at January 1, 2020 531,549 231,251 762,800
Balance as at December 31, 2020 531,549 231,251 762,800
Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at January 1, 2020 - 25,437 25,437
Depreciation for the year - 4,625 4,625
Balance as at December 31, 2020 - 30,062 30,062
Book Value as 31, December, 2020 531,549 201,189 732,738
Cost

Balance as at January 1, 2019 531,549 231,251 762,800
Balance as at December 31, 2019 531,549 231,251 762,800

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at January 1, 2019 - 20,812 20,812
Depreciation for the year - 4,625 4,625
Balance as at December 31, 2019 - 25,437 25,437
Book Value as 31, December, 2019 531,549 205,814 737,363

*According to the independent real-estate experts the evaluation of the fair value of investment
property at the date of consolidated financial statement was as follows:

Jordanian Dinar Average Fair Value Level of fair value
Land 548,885 Level 2
Buildings 247,050 Level 2

* The acquisition described in note (6) resulted to investment property amounted 159,000 as of
December 31, 2020 & 2019.

13) Right of use
This item represents:

As of December 31,
Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019
Right of use asset 166,120 207,642

166,120 207,642
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at the beginning of the year 41,522 -
Amortization for the year 41,520 41,522
Ending balance 83,042 41,522
Net Book Value 124,600 166,120
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14) Intangible assets

Computer
Jordanian Dinar Programs
Cost
As at 31 December 2020
Balance at 1 January 2020 105,127
Additions 592
Balance at 31 December 2020 105,719
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at 1 January 2020 101,586
Amortization for the year 2,391
Balance at 31, December 2020 103,977
Net Book Value as at 31 December 2020 1,742
As at 31 December 2019
Balance at 1 January 2019 105,127
Balance at 31 December 2019 105,127
Accumulated Amortization
Balance at 1 January 2019 99,268
Amortization for the year 2,318
Balance at 31, December 2019 101,586
Net Book Value as at 31 December 2019 3,541

15) Brokerage license

As of December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019

Brokerage license 200,000 200,000

Accumulated amortization (199,999) (199,999)
1 1

16) Income tax
- Movements on temporary timing differences were as follows:

Balance at the Balance at
Beginning of Released the end of Deferred
Jordanian Dinar the year Additions Amounts the year Tax Assets
As at 31 December 2020
Expected Credit losses allowance 3,660,920 500,000 - 4,160,920 1,165,098
3,660,920 500,000 - 4,160,920 1,165,098

As at 31 December 2019
Expected Credit losses allowance 3,903,920 200,000 (443,000) 3,660,920 1,025,098

3,903,920 200,000 (443,000) 3,660,920 1,025,098
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The movement on deferred tax asset account during the year was as follows:

As of December 31,
Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,025,098 1,093,098
Additions during the year 140,000 -
Released during the year - (68,000)
Balance at the end of the year 1,165,098 1,025,098

- The movement on income tax provision during the year was as follows:

As of December 31,
Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year - 33,895
Income tax for previous years - 22,171
Income Tax paid -

(56,066)
Balance at the end of the year - -

- The income tax expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, other comprehensive income

consists of:
Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019
Income tax for previous years - (22,171)
Change in deferred tax assets 140,000 (68,000)
Tax surplus (expense) for the year 140,000 (90,171)
- Reconciliation between taxable income and accounting income is as follows:

Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019

Income (loss) for the year before income tax (640,481) 102,265

(Less): Income not subject for income tax - (498,007)

- (395,742)
Income tax rate for the year %28 (2019: %28) - -
* There is no effectiveness on a tax to the presence of a deferred tax benefit rate.

Tax Status

- The Income tax status for the group has been settled until 2019.

- The group has not calculated the income tax provision for the year, and the group has operating losses
during the year.

17) Due to banks

This balance represents the utilized balance of overdraft from the Jordan Commercial Bank with limit
of 1.1 million JOD. The annual interest rate is 7.5%, and it is guaranteed by some of the Group’s own
portfolio consolidated (Note 9 and Note 10) amounted to 1,888,874 JD as of December 31, 2020.
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Brokerage customer payable

Jordanian Dinar

Brokerage customer receivables

Related parties Receivables (note 26-2)
Investment Management customer receivables
Finance customers on margin receivables

19) Leased liability

20)

21)

22)

Jordanian Dinar
Leased liability- short-term
Leased liability- long-term

Lease liabilities are discounted using the 8.75% interest rate

In Jordanian Dinar

Amounts recognized in profit or loss
Interest on Lease Liabilities

Amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows
Total cash outflow for leases

Other credit balances

Jordanian Dinar

Accrued expenses
Shareholders deposits
Employee vacations provision
Under writing refundable
Social security’s deposits
Income tax deposits

Other

Statutory reserve

As of December 31,

2020 2019
248,689 128,921
37,818 37,818
- 7,205
1,921 5,213
288,428 179,157

As of December 31,

2020 2019
41,228 44,835
96,206 83,072

137,434 127,907

For the year ended December 31,

2020 2019
11,190 14,240

(49,100) (49,100)
As of December 31,

2020 2019
60,425 59,823
57,907 57,956
49,999 40,895
36,647 36,647

1,864 1,864
2,186 1,716
13,971 11,083
222,999 209,984

According to the law of the Jordanian companies No. 22 of 1997 "on the public shareholding company
to deduct 10% of the annual net profits to calculate the statutory reserve after the settlement of the
accumulated losses, and maintain such a deduction for each year the total does not exceed what deduct
25% of the subscribed company's capital "this could go on deduction of up to 100% approval of the
General Assembly of the company. The Group may not distribute profit from its statutory reserve.

Other revenue

Jordanian Dinar

Rent

Interest on Settlement Guarantee Fund
Other

Opening accounts revenue
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2020 2019
4,530 7,908
2,851 2,838

100 259
270 145
7,751 11,150




Al BILAD SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
(PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY)
AMMAN - JORDAN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23) Administrative expenses

For the year ended December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019
Salaries and wages 218,413 241,940
Company contributions in social securities 11,874 15,562
Transportation 33,600 33,600
Fees and license 32,596 31,666
Legal expenses 18,500 25,150
Professional fees 18,420 16,680
Medical insurance 12,268 13,022
Employee vacation and end of service 9,128 9,816
Mail, Phone and internet 6,180 6,296
Al Zarga, Branch expenses 6,106 4,940
Water and electricity 3,748 3,192
Cleaning and hospitality 3,607 3,975
Maintenance 3,371 4,179
Car expenses 2,358 6,190
Furnished apartment expenses 1,608 1,349
Donations 1,500 2,000
Printing and stationary 1,353 2,581
General assembly expenses 1,315 2,203
Rents 900 900
Trading errors 252 1,812
Advertising - 293
Other 3,370 3,903
390,467 431,249

24) Einance expenses

For the year ended December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019
Banks fees 84,699 102,560
Banks commission 13,829 14,055
Interest — Finance charges 11,190 14,240
109,718 130,855

25) Basic and diluted profit (losses) per share
As of December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019
(loss) Profit for the year (JOD) (500,481) 12,094
Weighted average for shares (per share) 10,000,000 10,000,000
(0.050) 0.001

26) Balances and Transaction with related parties

Transactions with related transactions that are made with associates and key administrators and key
partners in the company and institutions controlled in whole or in part, or affect mainly on those
entities related parties represent. Directors have approved the policy and conditions of transactions

with related parties.
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26-1) Due from related parties

Nature of Nature of
Jordanian Dinar transaction relationship As of December 31,
2020 2019
Sharif Al-Rawshdeh Trading Member of the Board 2,926 420
2,926 420
26-2) Due to related parties
Nature of Nature of
Jordanian Dinar transaction relationship As of December 31,
2020 2019
Sadaf Al Bahar for .
property development Trading Depggg gg:rléman
Company 21,592 21,592
Fahad Thnian Trading Contributor 16,226 16,226
37,818 37,818
The volume of transactions with related parties during the year is as follows:
Jordanian Dinar For the Year ended of
Nature of Transaction December 31,
2020 2019
Sharif Al Rawshdeh Brokerage commission 40 481

26-3) Key management remuneration

Salaries and bonuses of senior executive management amounted to 162,532 Jordanian Dinar for the
year ended 31 December 2020 compared to 173,250 Jordanian Dinar for the year ended 31 December
20109.

27) Contingent Liabilities

As of December, 31

Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019
Bank Guarantees 650,500 750,500
650,500 750,500

Cash insurance against the bank guarantees amounted to 119,075 Jordanian Dinars for the year ended
December 31, 2020, (2019: JOD 116,769)

28) Einancial risk management

Overview
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments.

Credit risk

Liquidity risk
Market risk

Capital management

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group's management of
capital.

Risk management framework
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The management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Group's risk
management framework.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the
Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.

Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Group's activities. The Group, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all
employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Group Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk
management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework
in relation to the risks faced by the Group.

The Group Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit
undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results
of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

- Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from the company’s cash at
bank cheques under collection, trade receivables and other debit balances.

The carrying amount of the financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

As of December 31,
Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019
Financial assets at amortized cost 2,706,886 3,173,803
Cash at banks 280,446 178,244
Other debit balances 372,807 371,140
3,360,139 3,723,187

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics
of each customer. The demographics of the Group's customer base, including the default risk of the
industry and country in which customer operate, has less of an influence on credit risk.

Financial assets at amortized cost and other debit balances
- The company uses the simplified approach of the IFRS 9 which measure the expected credit loss and
use the expected credit loss provision for the whole accounts receivable.

- For measuring the expected credit loss purposes, accounts receivable was added based on the Joint
credit risk characteristics and the accounts receivable aging, for this the company has reached that the
expected credit loss percentages were approximate and reasonable in terms of the accounts receivable
loss percentages.

- The expected credit loss percentages prepared based on the accounts receivable/payments /settlements
during the period of two years and the historical credit loss which was systematic and tested during
this period. The historical loss percentages were modified to reflect the impact of the information
research over the macroeconomic which affect the customers’ ability to settle balances.

- According to this basis, the provision for expected credit loss was prepared as follows:
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Jordanian Dinar
Less than 90

More than 90

As of December 31, 2019 Days Days Total

Accounts Receivable

Average expected credit loss percentage %5.2 %77.7

Gross book value 1,766,917 5,241,138 7,008,055

Loss Provision 91,290 4,069,630 4,160,920
Less than More than 90

As of December 31, 2018 90 Days Days Total

Accounts Receivable

Average expected credit loss percentage %4.4 %73

Gross book value 2,086,635 4,884,274 6,970,909

Loss Provision 91,290 3,569,630 3,660,920

The Group policy for risk management and assets concentration is to determine fixed and clear rates
for the maximum amount that can be granted for any financial assets at amortized cost and other debit
balances , as there are ceiling on the amount of credit that can be granted to these financial assets at

amortized cost and other debit balances .

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated
with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring

unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses,
including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes the potential impact of extreme
circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. In addition, the company

maintains line of credit from its bank for sudden cash requirements.

The following are the contracted maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest

payments:
Carrying Contractual Less than More than a
December 31, 2020 Amount Cash Flows year year
Jordanian Dinar
Due to banks 1,075,822 (1,075,822) (1,075,822) -
Brokerage customer payable 288,428 (288,428) (288,428) -
Other credit balances 222,999 (222,999) (222,999) -
Lease liability 137,434 (147,300) (49,100) (98,200)
1,724,683 (1,734,549) (1,636,349) (98,200)
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Carrying Contractual Less than More than a
December 31, 2019 Amount Cash Flows year year
Jordanian Dinar
Due to banks 996,009 (996,009) (996,009) -
Brokerage customer payable 179,157 (179,157) (179,157) -
Other credit balances 209,984 (209,984) (209,984) -
Lease liability 127,907 (147,300) (49,100) (98,200)
1,513,057 (1,532,450) (1,434,250) (98,200)
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rate and
equity prices will affect the Group's profit or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

Currency Risk

Most of the Group's financial assets and liabilities are in Jordanian Dinar. Most of the Group's
transactions in general are in Jordanian dinar accordingly, the Group is not highly exposed to foreign
currency risk.

Interest rate risk
At the reporting date of consolidated financial statements, the interest rate profile of the Group's
interest-bearing financial instruments was as follows:

As at December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019
Fixed rate instruments:
Financial liabilities 1,075,822 996,009

The increase in the interest rate by 1% will lead to an increase in financing expenses amounted to
10,758 JD. The decrease in the interest rate by 1% would lead to a decline in financing expenses
amounted to 10,758 JD.

Market price risk

Equity price risk arises from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income held
for meeting partially the unfunded portion of the Group’s obligations as well as investments at fair
value through profit or loss. Management of the Group monitors the mix of debt and equity securities
in its investment portfolio based on market indices. Material investments within the portfolio are
managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved by the Risk Management
Committee.

Sensitivity analysis for equity price risk

A change of 5% in fair value of the securities at the reporting date would have increased (decreased)
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables,
in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

Equity
5% 5%
December 31, 2020 Increase Decrease
Jordanian Dinar
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 74,793 (74,793)

74,793 (74,793)

December 31, 2019

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 95,530 (95,530)
95,530 (95,530)
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- Capital management
Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain shareholder, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Capital consists of ordinary shares,
non-redeemable preference shares, accumulated losses of the Group.

The management monitors the return on capital, which the management defined as net operation
income divided by total shareholders’ equity.

The management seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

There have been no changes in the Group's approach to capital management during the year neither
the Group is subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

Debt-to-adjusted Capital Ratio

As at December 31,

Jordanian Dinar 2020 2019

Total Debt 1,724,683 1,513,057
(Less) cash and cash equivalent (280,843) (178,524)
Net Debt 1,443,840 1,334,533
Net Shareholders’ equity 7,622,378 8,354,610
Adjusted capital 7,622,378 8,498,610
Debt - to- adjusted capital ratio 0.190 0.160

The fair value
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are not materially different from their carrying value
in the statement of financial position.

Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs)

A. Assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:
Jordanian Dinar Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at 31 December 2020
Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income 1,451,377 44,485 - 1,495,862

As at 31 December 2019
Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income 1,821,114 89,485 - 1,910,599

Of the items described above, have been identified the second level of the fair value of financial assets
and liabilities on the basis (agreed-upon pricing models to reflect the credit risk for the parties that
deal with the company / price offered for assets similar in an inactive market / interest rates, the rate
of return and volatility implied credit / inputs and margins related to the market (market-related data).
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B. Assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value:
With the exception of the table below, the Group's management believes that the book value of
financial assets and liabilities that appear in the consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair value as a result of the maturity of the bonds in the short term or re-pricing of interest rates during
the year:
Jordanian Dinar Book value Fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

31 December 2020

Cash and cash equivalent 280,843 - - -
Financial assets at amortized cost 2,706,886 - - -
Credit banks (1,075,822) - - -
Brokerage customer payable (288,428) - - -
Leased liability (137,434) - - -
Jordanian Dinar Book value Fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

31 December 2019

Cash and cash equivalent 178,524 - - -
Financial assets at amortized cost 3,173,803 - - -
Credit banks (996,009) - - -
Brokerage customer payable (179,157) - - -
Leased liability (127,907)

Items described above have been identified at the second level of the fair value of financial assets and
liabilities on the basis (agreed-upon pricing models to reflect the credit risk for the parties that deal with
the company / price offered for assets similar in an inactive market / interest rates, the rate of return and
volatility implied credit / inputs and margins related to the market (market-related data).

C. Assets and liabilities of non-financial, which are not measured at fair value, which is disclosed
at fair value in the financial statements:

Jordanian Dinar Book value Fair value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
As at 31 December 2020
Investment property 732,738 - 795,935 -
As at 31 December 2019
Investment property 737,363 - 827,407 -

The items above clarify the fair value of assets and liabilities of non-financial, which is determined on
the basis of (a description of the valuation method used to measure the fair value); if the best use differs
from current use, It is to say why they use it in a way different from the best use).

29) COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Some comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the classification of the current year,
however, these reclassifications have no effect on the statement of changes in shareholders equity,
profit or loss statement and other comprehensive income for the year 2019. Comparative figures
represent the statement of financial position as of 31 December 2019.
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